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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, good

          3  afternoon, everyone. My name is Michael McMahon,

          4  Chairman of the City Council Committee on Sanitation

          5  and Solid Waste Management, and I hereby officially

          6  start this meeting.

          7                 The hearing that we're having today

          8  is concerning three pieces of legislation, Intros

          9  Number 510, 548, and 611.

         10                 Intro. No. 510, which I introduced,

         11  would allow the Department of Sanitation enforcement

         12  personnel to issue violations for dirty lots, and

         13  this is a bill that was introduced with the

         14  agreement and consent of the Department.

         15                 A recent ECB decision ruled that

         16  under the wording of the current law, DOS could

         17  issue violations for littered lots only for the

         18  sidewalks in front of the lots. And we seek to

         19  remedy that what we think is a wrong decision.

         20                 Intro. No. 548, introduced by Council

         21  Member Gentile provides that no summons be issued to

         22  the owner of one- or two-family home for violations

         23  of our recycling law, unless at least five items

         24  that have inappropriately sorted materials found in

         25  the wrong receptacle.
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          2                 This law is to prevent homeowners who

          3  do recycle from getting tickets for inappropriate

          4  items that are tossed in their recycling receptacles

          5  by passing pedestrians while the receptacles are

          6  waiting to be picked up by DOS.

          7                 Intro. No. 611, introduced by Council

          8  Member Yassky, provides that for purposes of routing

          9  enforcement, buildings that contain both residential

         10  and commercial uses shall be considered commercial.

         11                 When our commercial routing law was

         12  amended to include routing times for issuance of

         13  violations to residences, as well as commercial

         14  premises, it was unclear how a mixed-use building

         15  would be treated. This bill seeks to rectify that

         16  problem.

         17                 Today we will hear from Department of

         18  Sanitation First Deputy Commissioner Michael

         19  Bimonte, on behalf of the Administration, and then

         20  from members of the general public.

         21                 I understand, First Deputy

         22  Commissioner, that you're here because Commissioner

         23  Doherty --

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         25  Commissioner Doherty asked me to tell you that he

                                                            5

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  will not be dancing with you for some time. He has a

          3  ruptured Achilles tendon, and ask that you would

          4  hold all dances until he's ready.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes, I will do

          6  that. And if you would tell him that we greatly

          7  missed him, but we appreciate that he sent you, the

          8  both of you, and the members of the staff and the

          9  members of the Mayor's legislative staff, to review

         10  these important issues with us, and tell him we look

         11  forward to dancing in the future.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: I

         13  will do that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: The floor is

         15  yours.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         17  Thank you.

         18                 Good afternoon, Chairman McMahon, and

         19  members of the Committee on Sanitation, Solid --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I'm sorry,

         21  Deputy Commissioner. Let me just say we are joined

         22  by Council Member Vincent Gentile from Brooklyn, who

         23  is a sponsor of the second piece of legislation I

         24  mentioned, and Council Member Andrew Lanza from

         25  Staten Island.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          3  Good afternoon, Chairman McMahon and members of the

          4  Committee on Sanitation, Solid Waste Management.

          5                 I am Michael Bimonte, First Deputy

          6  Commissioner for Operations for the New York City

          7  Department of Sanitation.

          8                 I am here this afternoon with Chief

          9  Todd Kuznitz, Director of Enforcement for the

         10  Department to testify to three bills under

         11  consideration by the Committee that I will address

         12  separately.

         13                 The first bill, Intro. 510, proposes

         14  to amend Subdivision 2 of Section 16-118 of the

         15  City's Administrative Code.

         16                 This section currently authorizes the

         17  Department to issue violations to persons who fail

         18  to keep their property and immediate area

         19  surrounding their property, including back yards and

         20  alleyways, litter-free.

         21                 For decades it was longstanding

         22  Department policy that vacant lots fell within the

         23  definition of premises for purposes of issuing

         24  summonses for dirty areas observed inside a lot

         25  until 2002 when Environmental Control Board Appeals
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          2  Panel determined this section did not authorize the

          3  Department to issue such violations.

          4                 The Department supports Intro. No.

          5  510 as an important measure that will greatly

          6  enhance neighborhood appearance and overall street

          7  cleanliness.

          8                 The vacant lot owner, a person in

          9  charge, would be required to maintain the entire lot

         10  in the area in front free of litter and other

         11  debris. It places vacant lot owners, many of whom

         12  are non-residents or seasonal residents, on the same

         13  level as homeowners and businesses who are

         14  responsible for keeping their property litter free

         15  and subject to fines if they fail to do so.

         16                 Allow me to reaffirm that the

         17  Department will continue to work with Department of

         18  Health and Mental Hygiene when dirty area conditions

         19  are observed inside a vacant lot rise to the level

         20  of health nuisance.

         21                 The second bill, Intro. No. 548, will

         22  require Sanitation enforcement personnel to identify

         23  a minimum of five or more mis-sorted recyclable or

         24  trash items improperly placed in a one- or

         25  two-family homeowner's receptacle before issuing a
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          2  summons to the owner for improper disposal.

          3                 It is currently the Department's

          4  policy to issue summonses when more than five

          5  recyclable items are mixed in with regular trash or

          6  more than five non-recyclable items are mixed with

          7  designated recyclables.

          8                 Moreover, the Department does not

          9  distinguish between private homes and multiple

         10  dwellings and applies its policy equally.

         11                 While the change in law proposed by

         12  this bill is consistent with the Department's

         13  current enforcement policies, we believe codifying

         14  into law minimum numbers that constitute a violation

         15  sets a bad legislature of precedent.

         16                 Importantly, this might lead some

         17  residents to become less vigilant in sorting

         18  recyclables.

         19                 Legislation such as this could have

         20  the unintended effect of reducing recycling tonnage

         21  if the City residents do not embrace their recycling

         22  habit seriously.

         23                 Watering down requirements of the

         24  recycling law is the wrong message to convey to New

         25  Yorkers and implicitly says to State and federal
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          2  officials that New York City is 99 percent committed

          3  to recycle, not 100. For that reason I have just

          4  explained we do not favor this bill.

          5                 The last bill, Intro. No. 611, would

          6  classify for purposes of enforcement routing,

          7  premises containing both residential and commercial

          8  uses as a commercial premise, subject to the two

          9  one-hour routing hours imposed according to

         10  community district.

         11                 For enforcement purposes, the

         12  Department currently treats these buildings as

         13  either residential or commercial properties,

         14  depending on the nature of the violation.

         15                 It is currently the Department's

         16  policy when the commercial store is located at

         17  ground level, residential apartments above the

         18  store, for example, Atlantic Avenue in Brooklyn,

         19  Jamaica Avenue in Queens, to issue to the store a

         20  summons for dirty sidewalk or curb conditions during

         21  the applicable commercial enforcement routing hours.

         22                 However, when the dirty sidewalk or

         23  curb condition is clearly attributable to the

         24  residential portion of the building, and is observed

         25  during the designated residential enforcement hours
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          2  between eight and nine a.m. and twelve and one p.m.,

          3  Sanitation Enforcement personnel will write the

          4  ticket to the building owner, not the store owner.

          5                 Reclassifying such a mixed use

          6  building as commercial premises across the board for

          7  purpose of enforcement routing will impact building

          8  owners who will be required to comply with the

          9  varying commercial routing times based on the

         10  community district in which the building is located.

         11                 For the reasons I have just

         12  explained, the Department does not favor this bill.

         13                 My staff and I will be happy to

         14  respond to any of your questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, First

         16  Deputy Commissioner. Does Chief Kuznitz have

         17  testimony? Or he's only here to help?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         19  He's here to support us.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, I'll go. I

         21  have a few questions, and then I will turn it over

         22  to my colleagues, including the sponsor of 548.

         23                 With regards to 510, which would seek

         24  to enhance your powers in terms of keeping vacant

         25  lots clean, just what's the current -- before the
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          2  decision of the ECB Board, what was the practice of

          3  the Department? They had a vacant lot and it was

          4  littered, the owner could be fined?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: We

          6  would issue a summons to the registered owner of the

          7  lot. The address of the registered owner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And the ECB

          9  decision changed that because it defined that as not

         10  being a premise?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         12  ECB said that it didn't fall under the rule which we

         13  issued a summons. We could only issue for dirty

         14  sidewalk and not for refuge or material that was

         15  inside the lot.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yet you could do

         17  that for a homeowner or a business owner, right?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         19  Yes, we could. Yes, we could.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: What was the

         21  basis of that decision?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: I

         23  have no idea.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, bad judges

         25  make bad -- no.
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          2                 I'm glad I didn't finish that.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: We

          4  didn't agree with it then and we don't agree with it

          5  now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And nor do I.

          7                 And just the process now, if let's

          8  say you get a call on 311 or a call from a local

          9  Council member's office about a dirty vacant lot,

         10  say under the old law, you would then issue a

         11  summons? If someone went out and confirmed it, they

         12  would issue a summons against the owner; is that

         13  correct?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         15  That's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Under what

         17  circumstances would you actually clean the lot?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         19  Well, we would go out and look at the lot. If it was

         20  a City-owned lot, then we would, we would clean it.

         21                 If it was a privately-owned lot, we

         22  would do a five-day letter through the Health

         23  Department. They would issue a five-day letter, what

         24  they call a five-day letter to the owner of the

         25  premise, stating that his lot has been found to be
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          2  conditions, dirty conditions, rodent infestation, or

          3  subject to West Nile. He has five days from the time

          4  he received the letter to clean the lot.

          5                 If he doesn't clean the lot within

          6  five days, then Sanitation goes out, cleans the lot,

          7  bills the owner through the Health Department.

          8                 Health would first go out and bait

          9  the lot. They would go out, look at the lot and bait

         10  it. They would charge the owner for baiting, send

         11  out a five-day letter. If within five days the lot

         12  was not clean, then the Department would go out,

         13  clean the litter and bill the owner through the

         14  Health Department.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And is that only

         16  in cases where there is, say, either a rat

         17  infestation perceived or West Nile? I mean, more of

         18  a health concern, I mean as opposed to just a dirty

         19  lot concern?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         21  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  And say if it's

         23  just paper or something, where we don't, you know,

         24  it's just more of an eyesore and unsightly, does

         25  Sanitation undertake to clean that lot and bill the
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          2  owner? Or it has to go through Health for like a

          3  Health determination?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          5  Sanitation would go in and clean it if the lot was

          6  strewn with debris, with bulk, with C&D material,

          7  then we would go in and look to clean it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And then you

          9  would bill the owner?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         11  Then we would bill the owner, right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You can do it

         13  under both circumstances, if it's sort of, I want to

         14  say non-health crisis debris, you can go in on your

         15  own, clean it and bill the owner?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         17  No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: No. There has to

         19  be a health --

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         21  Yes. Health Department usually gives us a lead-in

         22  with the five-day letter. If it's a privately-owned

         23  lot, we go to Health, Health issues a five-day

         24  letter, and we go in.

         25                 If Health on its own sees a lot
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          2  that's become a health nuisance, they will do that

          3  on their own.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Right.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          6  And then issue, and we would go in and clean.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But are there

          8  many litter-strewn lots that don't reach a threshold

          9  of warranting a Health Department letter, that then

         10  therefore remain unclean?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         12  There are many litter-strewn lots that are

         13  unsightly. The litter continues to build up in those

         14  lots, and then at some point you have a health

         15  nuisance, or you have a lot that leads to a

         16  detrimental look to the neighborhood, to the area,

         17  and then we get a complaint.

         18                 Eventually we get a complaint on it.

         19                 The Department's reason for issuing,

         20  or wanting to issue the summons beforehand is that

         21  the owner of the lot may at that time go in and

         22  clean the lot.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But the bill

         24  that we're looking at today, Intro. 510, does this

         25  do enough?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          3  Intro. 510 would make the owners aware that their

          4  lot is in a dirty condition and that we have issued

          5  a summons and that forthcoming there would be a

          6  five-day letter.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. All right.

          8  I guess my concern is I just want to avoid a

          9  situation where there are a lot of lots that don't

         10  sort of reach that Health Department threshold and

         11  therefore don't get action from the Department.

         12                 Are there many that that happens to?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         14  No, I think --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Am I making that

         16  clear?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         18  Yes, you're making it clear, and I think in the

         19  five-day letter that the Health Department sends

         20  out, there are criterias for what they consider a

         21  health nuisance in a lot. Rat infestation, garbage,

         22  putrescibles, a lot of C&D, high weeds, stagnant

         23  water. Stuff like that.

         24                 And that's basically what we use. We

         25  kind of use the same guide on the lots that we see.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, the majority

          3  of litter-strewn lots would meet that threshold and

          4  therefore would trigger the five-day letter, and

          5  that means that if there's remediations not taken by

          6  the owner, you can go in, clean it and bill back to

          7  the owner?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          9  That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         11                 All right. Thank you.

         12                 And then on the second bill, 548, you

         13  said that right now the Department does follow a

         14  five-item rule.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         16  The Department does follow a five-item rule on its

         17  own.

         18                 These are the standard that the

         19  Department has set. Our agents have been taught that

         20  they go out, if there's more than five, they'll

         21  issue the summons. If there's less than five, they

         22  won't issue the summons.

         23                 If there's more than five and they're

         24  going to issue a summons, they're taught to ring the

         25  bell, if there's someone at home, they'll bring this
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          2  person down, show them the violation, explain the

          3  violation to them, prior to issuing the summons.

          4                 So, the person is cognizant as to why

          5  they're getting the summons, because they have five

          6  or more pieces.

          7                 If there's less than five, we don't

          8  really ring any bells, don't really do anything. We

          9  hope that our outreach kind of, you know, juggles

         10  the minds of everybody.

         11                 We put a lot of money into outreach

         12  every year, as you well know, so we hope that that

         13  outreach will reach out.

         14                 We really don't want to say, hey,

         15  you're allowed five. Then somebody will say, we got

         16  three Coke cans in there, that's okay, don't worry

         17  about it, we're allowed five.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I understand

         19  that, but do you issue a warning if somebody has

         20  less than -- like three or four?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         22  No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Do you think

         24  that would be too cumbersome to do?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:
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          2  Yes, it would be too cumbersome. And, of course, you

          3  know when we reintroduced the recyclables back into

          4  the stream, we did two months, three months, four

          5  months of warnings, and at that time we told

          6  everybody what was expected of them.

          7                 I mean, if you go out now and do it,

          8  you know, it just would cost us, would cost us too

          9  many man hours to do. And we're not issuing for less

         10  than five anyway, so...

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         12                 Councilman Gentile, you want to jump

         13  in there on 548?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you.

         15  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 Commissioner, I'm just curious, you

         17  had indicated about one of the concerns you had for

         18  548 was the fact that in passing such legislation

         19  residents might not, as you say, embrace their

         20  recycling habits seriously.

         21                 I think that from the experience that

         22  I've had is that the very fact that residents do

         23  embrace their recycling responsibilities seriously

         24  is the fact that they get so upset over the fact

         25  that they are receiving summonses for pieces of
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          2  incorrectly mis-sorted recycling.

          3                 So, I almost -- my experience has

          4  been the opposite of what your concern is.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          6  Okay, Councilman, I would say that when the summons

          7  is issued, the agent, or issuing officer, does

          8  visually indicate exactly what items he found.

          9                 Anyone receiving that summons has the

         10  right to challenge it. And I would ask the

         11  Councilman that if these constituents feel that

         12  their summonses that they're receiving are not just,

         13  it just takes a phone call and Chief Kuznitz will

         14  have somebody out there to talk to the people and

         15  show them exactly what they did wrong.

         16                 I don't believe that our agents are

         17  out there purposely issuing summonses for less than

         18  five.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Now,

         20  Commissioner, you also indicate that the policy now

         21  is more than five that are mixed with the regular

         22  trash or more than five non-recyclable items mixed

         23  with recyclables, but this bill actually addresses

         24  the fact that there's a missorting within the

         25  recyclables, not with regular trash or
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          2  non-recyclables.

          3                 Is that part of your policy also?

          4  Because you didn't state that in your opening

          5  remarks.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          7  No, we're not issuing summonses for having the wrong

          8  type of recyclable in with the recyclables. I mean

          9  some plastic in there that's not a recyclable

         10  plastic --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Or the

         12  plastic is in with the cardboard and the paper

         13  recyclables.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: We

         15  didn't issue. Five or more, that's our rule.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, within

         17  the realm of the recyclable materials --

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         19  It's five or more.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: -- It is

         21  still your unwritten policy that if the cardboard is

         22  in with the plastic or the metal is in with the

         23  paper, unless there are at least five pieces, that's

         24  still your policy.

         25                 You didn't mention it here, I'm just
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          2  asking.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          4  That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: That is still

          6  the, I guess unwritten policy?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          8  It's the unwritten policy.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: It's

         10  unwritten policy.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         12  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         15  Again, I stated I think it would be detrimental to

         16  put it in writing, because then if you have -- I

         17  mean, you have a lot of single people who live home,

         18  who have a can of soda a night or a bottle of soda a

         19  night and that will go in the garbage.

         20                 I mean, I think if you put it in

         21  writing that, hey, you're allowed five, I think you

         22  would see a definite decrease in recycling tonnage

         23  throughout the City.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Well, but at

         25  the same point, you understand those people who in
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          2  good faith recycle and try to recycle in the right

          3  bins, you understand those people who in good faith

          4  have that and then end up with a summons because

          5  maybe somebody else threw something in there, in the

          6  recycling?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          8  Let me just say another thing. Our agents also in

          9  the course of their duties see a recycling bin or

         10  can with something on top, one item on top, they

         11  will not issue. They have been told, hey, if someone

         12  looks like they're recycling and they've got a

         13  recycling bin out, and someone came by with a pack

         14  of cigarettes or something else and threw it on, use

         15  your head, and that's what they do and that's what

         16  they've been taught.

         17                 Chief Kuznitz puts out orders every

         18  single day.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Let me just

         20  read to you then a letter that came to me just this

         21  week from a constituent, who writes to me.  It's in

         22  Bensonhurst.

         23                 He said "Last week I put out my

         24  recycle bin for pick-up on Monday morning.

         25                 When I came home I had a summons on
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          2  my door at 3:30 p.m. in the afternoon stating that

          3  my paper and metal were all mixed in the wrong cans.

          4  I have to appear for a hearing on June 30th and pay

          5  the fine of $25." I want to ask you, "is there any

          6  way the consumer," he calls himself the consumer,

          7   "can be protected from this?"

          8                 And he goes on to say that "In the

          9  past I got a summons. While I was on vacation, I got

         10  a summons for the same thing, went for a hearing,"

         11  had it reduced, or it says "beat," "beat the ticket.

         12  This time I have to pay because it's not worth the

         13  time to take off. I recycled in good faith, and I

         14  had to pay the price."

         15                 This is just a letter two days old.

         16                 So, I'm curious about this letter in

         17  regard to what you said, in terms of the training.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         19  Did he say a bundle of newspapers was put in?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: It was mixed.

         21  The paper -- now, he's saying that it could have

         22  been done by somebody during the day, like homeless

         23  people during the day could have been going through

         24  the trash. But in the end, he got the ticket.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:
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          2  Well, if it was a bundle of newspapers in with his

          3  metal, glass and plastic, maybe the agent felt that

          4  newspapers should be separate. But if in the

          5  recycling bin there is metal, glass and plastic and

          6  five other items, he doesn't get his ticket. If in

          7  the refuge there's three Coke cans and a Pepsi

          8  bottle, he doesn't get a ticket.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: But wouldn't

         10  this suggest to you that agents are actually doing

         11  something different than what you're suggesting

         12  here?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         14  No. No. It may suggest that one agent may have done

         15  something different. And I don't know in this case

         16  if it wasn't a bundle of newspapers, instead of

         17  being placed on the side, it was placed in with the

         18  metal, glass and plastic. It might not have been

         19  tied. I don't know the circumstances surrounding the

         20  summons.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: See, in this

         22  gentleman's case, and I know this gentleman, he will

         23  continue to be serious about his recycling. But at

         24  the same time he's saying to us, give us a break.

         25  You know, if stuff like this happens, give us a
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          2  break.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: I

          4  would be happy to send someone to talk to that

          5  gentleman, if you would like.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman,

          7  I have nothing further. I mean, the bill, it is what

          8  it is. I just think we're at a -- we're all on the

          9  same page on recycling, we're just at a difference

         10  in opinion on how we should approach it to the

         11  general public.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: No, I agree. And

         13  certainly, we want to make sure that the recycling

         14  plan, the recycling is implemented in the most

         15  effective and fairest way to the people of the City.

         16                 The policy about the five pieces to

         17  constitute a violation; is that something you give

         18  in writing to the agent? Or is that an oral

         19  directive given in their training process?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         21  No, that's just an oral directive, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         24  That's what the Department feels is a reasonable

         25  amount of recyclables that should be found in the
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          2  refuge or vice versa.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

          4                 Well, I think it's obviously an

          5  interesting issue and that's why we had the hearing

          6  on the bill --

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          8  And, again, my reason for saying, you know, the

          9  Department does use discretion, and does have the

         10  five-item rule, if we say you're allowed five items,

         11  it's my feeling that you'll see five items and that

         12  the people that aren't, will get five items plus

         13  three more items and now we have eight items. And I

         14  think we'll definitely see recycling, you know,

         15  recycling will be hurt by it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I understand

         17  your point.

         18                 Although the letter does raise a good

         19  question. Because I know even my recycling, we have

         20  a street merchant who does come and does kind of

         21  turn things upside down. I'm not sure if this bill

         22  would solve that problem or not, but it certainly is

         23  something that we have to consider. I'm not sure

         24  what the answer is, but it does happen. Because I

         25  know my own experience, I have to go out sometimes
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          2  in the morning and get those five items out of the

          3  -- put them back in the right place so I don't get

          4  a ticket. But it does happen.

          5                 So, it's something that the

          6  Committee, this is the first hearing, and we'll

          7  continue to look at.

          8                 On the third bill, I'm seeing your

          9  testimony, but I guess the question is, does the

         10  bill codify what you're already doing in the field?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         12  No.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Or it's actually

         14  the opposite?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         16  What we're doing in the field is we have residential

         17  routing hours, which are eight to nine and twelve to

         18  one, and we have commercial routing which are based

         19  on the community district, which can vary, twelve to

         20  one, one to two, two to three, three to four, four

         21  to five. They're two one-hour periods that could be

         22  ten to eleven, two to three, one to two, four to

         23  five.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes. So, in

         25  those mixed use settings, when you have a commercial
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          2  building with one door, how do you determine what's

          3  residential and what's commercial?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          5  Well, if we get there during the commercial routing

          6  time, and the sidewalk is dirty, 18 inches are

          7  dirty, we usually issue it to the commercial

          8  resident.

          9                 If we get there during the eight to

         10  nine, twelve to one, and there is garbage out there,

         11  bags out there, cans out there, something that we

         12  can say, hey, the condition is attributed to the

         13  residents in the building, then we would issue to

         14  the owner of the building.

         15                 To say that that whole building is

         16  commercial, I don't think it's fair to the store

         17  owner.

         18                 Take it, in some areas, in the

         19  Bayridge area and Fourth Avenue area, in Manhattan

         20  especially, you have highrise buildings. The

         21  entrance of the building is on the avenue and there

         22  is a store on the street around the corner that's

         23  part of that building.

         24                 Now are we to hold that store owner

         25  responsible for sweeping that whole area that may
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          2  involve a half a block away from the store? Is he

          3  responsible for his store, around the corner and the

          4  entrance to that building, because that building has

          5  now been classified as commercial? Residential is

          6  eight to nine, twelve to one. We may get there

          7  during his commercial hours and say, hey, you have a

          8  condition around the corner. I don't think that's

          9  fair to the commercial store owner.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: It's not an

         11  issue that's raised so much in my it's not district,

         12  so we'll have to talk to Council Member Yassky as to

         13  the complaints that compelled him to file this bill.

         14                 Again, this is the first hearing on

         15  this matter, so they're clearly issues of concern.

         16                 And if there are no other questions

         17  from my colleagues, I want to thank you very much

         18  for coming.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         20  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you for

         22  the great work you do every day in keeping the City

         23  of New York cleaner, and, therefore, a nicer place

         24  to live, and thank you, again, for bringing 510 to

         25  our attention, and we will speak to you all in the
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          2  very near future, and give the Commissioner our

          3  regards.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: We

          5  will. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

          7                 Okay, surprisingly, there being no

          8  members of the public to testify, I will hereby

          9  close this hearing and thank everybody for coming.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 2:00 p.m.)
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